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COMPLETE VINDICATION OF HON. WM. PUGSLEY
who are levelling then vue attacks upon 
me ançl seeking to injure my reputation 
and my character, that it would be fair 
for them to appeal to some gentleman 
upon the other side oHhe house to make 
a direct and specific charge against me so 
that I may know what I have to answer, 
so that àfv enquiry may take place and so , 
that witnesses may be called to the end 
that we may know whether I am guilty or 
not guilty of those insinuations which are 
hurled against me. That, it seems to me 
is the fair and manly course to take and 
that it seems to me is but a small measure 
of the justice which every man in this 
country is entitled to have meted out to 
him.

Dr. Pugsley was furiously cheered for 
five minutes by the Liberals for his splen­
did speech.,

Mr. Crocket declared Dr. Pugsley had 
not touched the gravamen of the charge 
which was the bargain between Mayes 
and McAvity. He also said that the re­
sult in New Brunswick was no vindica­
tion of Dr. Pugsley but had been accom- 
publighed through the purchase of all the 
daily papers of the province and by aid of 
a big campaign fund.

Mn Carvel 1, of Carleton, declared he felt 
compelled to say something on the most 
dastardly attempt ever made in Canada 
to drive a minister of the crown from pub­
lic life. Before the last election the Con­
servatives were so confident that two <>f 
them, not nqw in parliament, boasted that 
lie (Carvell) would never tome back, and , 
that not more than two Liberals would 
come back from New Brunswick. When 
they got into the campaign and found the 
sentiment going against them they had to 
do something and they got the good-looking 

He said that premier of New Brunswick—and when you 
have said that you have stated the whole 
of hie virtue#»—to read the false affidavit 
of Mayes to a public meeting in St. John.

Under the rules of parliament Mr. Car­
vell said he was bound to accept Dr. Dan­
iel’s statement that on the platform at 
the St. John meeting Premier Ilazen,after 
reading the date 1907, turned to Mayes and 
finding the date should have been 1905, f<> 
corrected it to the audience. Though 
bound to accept that statement he was 
bound to declare that Premier Hazen must 
have made the explanation in a whisper, . 
for no reporter and no man in the aud­
ience heard it. The reading of that affi­
davit had an effect and the effect wan 
that Dr. Daniel Was. now sitting in parlia­
ment by virtue of a dishonest affidavit. . - 
No man in Canada had been bounded ae 
Mr. George McAvity had been bounded 
by the Conservative party in New Bruns- 

expenee, wick. , However, Mr. McAvity w'as a man
It was not true that Mayes was eager of good character- ,He was a man whose 

to go on with the contract at forty-nine name would stand high when the names 
cents ot even at fifty cents; in fact he of his traducers had been forgotten. Mr. 
had applied in November, 1907, to have Carvell declared that he was proud to 
the contract cancelled and a new one en- claim Mr, McAvity as a friend. He defied 
tjfred into which would give him more pay any one to read the affidavit and find 
for boulder work. That friendship for in it that Mr. McAvity had acted any 
Mayes or McAvity did not influence the part but that of a business gentleman, 
department was shown by the fact that The letter of Mayes of August lqst came 
in October, 1907, Mayes refused to carry perilously near to. being blackmail, while 
out the work according to the directions the reply of the minister of public works 
of the engineers, and Dr. Pujgsley wired to that letter was one that no guilty man x 
Engineer Scammell to have the work car- would dare to write. Before Mayes had 
ried out according tir the directions of the made his 'affidavit he had sent one of the 
chief engineer, which meant that he was officers of the Conservative association 
tp carry out the contract. with an offer of a bribe of $20,000 to the

Mayes had tried to get $19.60 for boulder Liberal campaign fund to induce the min- 
work instead of hie contract price of $8. ieter of public w'orks to buy the Mayes 
That was refused. Finding that he could dredge. A man who ivould play the game ' 
not get favors but had to carry out the Mayes had would not hesitate to go further 
contract, Mayes had tried to sell his dredge to draw an affidavit to promote his own 
to the department for $150,000 and had interests or injure the minister of public 
threatened to make damaging disclosures works. The reason that the Conservative#, 
if it were not purchased. He was met by were bo violently attacking the minister of 
a refusal. He had shown to a prominent public works now was because the local 
Liberal, Mr. Osman, a photograph of a government of New Brunswick was likely 
promissory note for $2,000 in favor of Dr. to be voted out of office any day. The 
Pugsley, and had given the impression that fact was that the Conservative govem- 
the note was made after Dr. Pugsley had ment there, returned a year ago with s 
become minister of public works and that heavy majority, had broken every one of 
he would make the matter public unless its pledgee to both friends and foes, which 
he got $150,000 for his dredge, but that if had gone to the country twice in by-elec- ^ 
he got the price he wrould give $20,000 to tions and had come back with two black 
the Liberal campaign fund. Mr. Osman eyes, which dare not open another con- 
had been greatly disturbed until Dr. Pugs- stituency, whose followers were now seeth- 
ley had assured him that the note was ing in rebellion, and to save that govem- 
made in 1905 before he was minister of ment this''attack had to be organized to 
public works and was for legal services. divert attention from the unpopularity of 

J. B. M. Baxter, vice-president of the the Hazen government. That was the 
Conservative Association of St. John, had secret of the attacks on the minister of 
bèen retained by Mr. Mayes and had press- public works.
ed the offer of Mayes to sell the dredge- Sir Wilfrid Laurier said he could de- 
Dr. Pugsley read a letter which he had dare himself against the motion with a 
written in reply to a telegram from Mr. clear conscience. It was unfortunate that 
Baxter in which Dc. Pugsley refused to^ the honor of a minister of the crown had 
buy the Mayes dredge, because the chief been impunged and it was to be regretted 
superintendent of dredging had reported that motions of the character of that 
that Mayes was asking more for it than made by Dr. Daniel had been offered to 
it was worth. the house. In the past there had been

Dr. Pugsley challenged anyone to show charges against ministers of the crown, but 
that he had deviated a hair from his duty on these occasions the member making 
or had given any favor to Mayes or Me- them had declared that the charge could 
Avity. be sustained by the evidence he could

Now. Mr. Mayes having tried first by offer. This had been the course followed 
suggesting that there would be a contri- by Mr. Tarte in 1891. 
but ion to the campaign fund, a suggestion In the present case no less a person 
which did not succeed because I suppose than the premier of New Brunswick had 
we did not require any campaign fund; at solemnly read an affidavit at a public 
all events, sir, we did not require any meeting in St. John and now that aifi- 
campaign fund to be contributed to by davit had, with an amendment, been read 
Mr. Gershon S. Mayes nor by anybody in parliament. But would the man who ^ 
else in return for any favors to him or had read them. Dr. Daniel, dare say he 
anyone else having dealings with the gov- was credibly informed that the accusations 
eminent of this country—after he had in the affidavit could be substantiated? 
failed to accomplish his object by these No, Dr. Daniel would not take that ;e- 
suggestions, and after he had failed by an sponsibility. Even while he held the <ufi- 
attempt at blackmail, and after he found davits in his hands. Dr. Daniel' had not 
that he could not dispose of liis dredging sufficient faith in their contents to de­
plant to the government and could not clare that the statements were true or 
get his claim settled except in the ordin- that they could be substantiated, 
ary way, and get just what lie waa enti- The affidavits contained the sworn 
tied to get—after he found, too, that lie statements of a self-confessed boodl^r.

elled, and What credence could the house place il 
the charges of a man who could not make 
charges against another without at the 
same time accusing himself? What confi­
dence could tjiey place in the charges oi 
a man who at the same time declared lie 

wrong-doing ? Could the house eon-

Because Mr. McAvity did not get any 
favors from the department of public 
works.
"Mr. Daniel—I would consider that a 
good cause for action because the under­
standing on which Mr. McAvity went in­
to the agreement was that he would get 
favors.

Mr. Pugsley—And my hon. friend (Dan­
iel) lias actually read to this house a let­
ter—he lias actually fathered this letter, 
too—in which Mr. Gershon S. Mayes com­
plains of Mr. George McAvity that he haa 
not succeeded in getting favors from the 
department' of public works. And that is 
the ground upon which just a few days be­
fore the election, almost simultaneously 
with the reading of this affidavit—and let 
me say, sir, that the people of St. John 
accepted it at its true worth. and let me 
say. Mr. Speaker, the people of the whole 
province of New Brunswick accepted it at 
its true value.

While we bad in that province a splendid 
cause to fight for, and while we had most 
acceptable candidates in even- county in 
the province, yet I am almost inclined to 
think that some small measure of the suc­
cess which we achieved in that contest 
was owing to the unfair tactics of our op­
ponents, was owing to their determination 
shown, week after week, to resort to all 
kinds of slander, to hesitate at nothing 
in order to achieve success, winding up 
with the reading by the premier of the 
province of this false affidavit at the great 
Conservative meeting in the city of St. 
John.

Continuing after 6 o’clock. Dr. Pugsley 
recalled to the house the answer given at 
the polls by the people of New Brunswick 
to the Conservative attacks, of which the 
Mayes affidavit was one. 
neither in 1905 or at any other time harl 
he any interest in or received >my benefit 
from the Mayes contract, though, when 
minister of public works, both Mayes and 
McAvity had come to him for favors in 
regard to the contract, he had held them 
to the strict letter of their agreement and 
had not "tét friendship or any other con­
sideration influence his conduct as a min­
ister.

There was no truth in the report that 
money due had beeni held iback from 
Mayes for political reasons. Vive thous­
and dollars was held to compel Mayes to 
carry out his contract and remove bould­
ers which he had left on thex site of his 
dredging- More than this amount should 
have been held had the department been 

of the number of boulders which

ought not to pay because he thought the | Mr. Daniel—Not at all. not at alb 
price was excessive, and he called again Dr. Pugsley—It comes to this, that my
for new tenders. That, it seems to me, honorable friend admits that there was
was what was his duty to do. no collusion between Mr. McAvity and

,So far as the affidavit shows, so far as Mr. Mayes and the minister, 
any statement my hon. friend has made Mr. Daniel—I admit nothing more than 
to the house shows, that up to that time I have, stated.
at all‘evëntê in calling fbr nefr tetiders pfr Pugsley— My honorable friend must 
there was nothing which could be im- acjmit that Mr. McAvity and Mr. Mayes 
pugned in the conduct of the minister of jia(j no information as to what was the
public works of ot the officials of the de- amount of the next tender, and, that be-
partment. Now;, he called again for new • ;ng RO' they simply put in their tender at 
tenders, and upon the second occasion i fifty-five cent^ per cubic yard and they

Mr. Daniel—1 think the minister is going » not true as Mr. Mayes suggests, that he took their chance of that being the low-
rather beyond the limit when he accuses was the only tenderer. . est tender And. Mr. Speaker, the very
me of taking an unmanly course and a •*««» tenders were f that tl,ere "f. a difference of forty-
dishonorable course- I would ask the min- Haney and Miller, of Toronto ,nd also five cants per cubic yard between their
istev tn take thnsp words back trom Mr. Mayes, and in,on -hts o^can.on tender, which was the lowest, and Messrs.

Mr. Pugsley—I could not- by any possi- Mr- Mayes altered his Under to 55 cento Haney & Miller, who were next to them
bilitv withdraw that statement. a cubic yard on dir» out it on „ the very strongest evidence of the fact

Mr Daniel—Mv noint of order is that rock. For one class of wor !.. reduce . tlat there was no collusion. Then, there 
the mi™™ sav^ /haw been mating in h-tondcr.by U» ?nta and tot oUiernn, was the other fact that the tender of Mr 
sinuations against his character. I have he increased it by six c.nU. Vv hen Mayeg on boulders was reduced by thirty
made no insinuations and I ask him to the tenders were epeaed it was found coute per cubic yard as it .was, as com-
withdraw that statement the tenner ov Haney 4 duffer was $3.» pa.red wlth what it was under the first

Mr Pugsley—If Dr Daniel says he did ! cubic yard -or mat wish of rises 1 and tender, and that there was also a change 
not insinuate anything against me 1 ac-j » l*r cubic V»d for. material at clato ^ made by Haney & Miller in the price they 
ceDt his statement T#ms, there was a. d-ffereaw <.-E *L> cents a9ked for boulders, as well as m the price

Mr. Daniel—The hon. minister (Pugsley) Pf cubic yard between Ux ie^er of Mr. which thcy were asking for ordinary 
and even member of the house knows ana trie ^ Miller. terja} But everything connected with
very well that I never insinuated any- [n tIie dejisrtr^e^M. the jetting of the contract in the depajt-
tliing. Even- member of the house knows tbc foce o: i,v; u ‘•f * mental records* *nd, ev!ryt1hlnf whlcb Mr"
that any insinuations or charges against two tenders , jvhti j.iaffit-Ation can Mayes has stated is absolutely consistent 
him have been made by Mr. Gershon S. ]>e given by Dr. Jiaaij* ^i m to thw witb the fact so far as the minister was
Maves on oath. house an affidavit which ^oUd kad the concernedt and so far as the officials ol
* Mr. Pugsley—Then. I understand that members of this house ana ibe peopie of the department were concerned, that every- 
mv hon. friend did not make any insinu- CaTtada to beil^ve tbdt ?° tuldcr ™ ■ tlling wafl regular and proper. And yet, bir,
arions airainst me? nutted upon the second occasion but the wp are asked, under these circumstances,

Air Daniel Yes tender of Gorshon b. .-layes. to investigate the conduct of a former
Mr. Sproule—-Was the f-pecification the mjnjster Gf the crown in awarding this 

same on each occasion when tenders were contract jn a regular and proper manner
ca!Jfd . , . , to Mr. Mayes.

Mr. Pugsley—The tenders m both cases ^ me gay thifl io my honorable friend: 
the same except that, when they j it as a jawyer;. I say it as one who

has had very considerable experience. 1 
have seen the question asked in the news­
papers: Why does not the crown proceed 
against Mr., McAvity? Let me say, bir, 
that if the crown could proceed against 
anybody it would not. be against Mr. Mc­
Avity, but it would be against that bosom 
friend of the member for St. John, Ger­
shon S. Mayes.

Mr. Danidl—I want to say, Mr. Speak-

Mv denial of this statement and my de- ieel that a charge can be properly be made 
nunciation of this man appeared in the against me, as minister of public works,

1 invite him to make that, charge. And 
let me say that that is the proper and 

It is neither man-

(Continued from Page 3) 
when ne madv Vo* statement that- he h«fd

f

evening papers of the 13th of October and 
it was then and not till then that Mr. 
Mayes wrote me a letter stating that he 
had observed in the evening papers the 
statement which I had made and he 
\)rote me a letter to express his regrets 
that the date had been given as 1907 in­
stead of 1905. He said that the error as 
to the date was the iPrrov of a typewriter. 
Does it not strike you as strange that 
these newspaper reporters should have fal­
len into the same lamentable error as the 
typewriter? These newspaper men were 
not typewriters and were supposed to have 
taken down what was said at that publie 
meeting, and it was very singular that 
they should have fallen into the same 
error. The error was stated afterwards 
to have been a typographical one, but is it 
not equally singular that every Conserva­
tive newspaper from the Atlantic to the 
Pacific should have -been guilty of the 
same typographical error?

(wo affidavits, the one of October 12, 1908. 
snd the other of March, 1909. The hon. 
gentleman made that statement to v.lie 

He acquiesced in the question which'

manly course to pursue, 
ly, in my judgment, nor is it honorable, 
nor is it conduct to be expected of a pub­
lic man, that he should, upon mere in- 
sinuatiOns, destroy the character of their 
opponents Avhen they are not prepared to 
take the responsibility of submitting defin­
ite charges for investigation by parlia­
ment.

house.
I put to him. I put the question distill. 1- 
|v to mv hon. h iend as to whether he had 
the two affidavits in his possession, the 
one of October 12, 1908, and the one ot 
March, 1909. and my hon. friend assented 
to that and led me to believe that he in­
tended to lay the -original affidavit, with 

the table of thehe figures 1907, upon
joiise.

Mr. Daniel—Dr. Pugsley holds in his 
hand both of these affidavits.

Mr. Pugsley—There is only one affidavit

r. Daniel—He holds in his hands the 
.ayit solemnly declared to on October 
xnd also on March 24.
.. Pugsley—Mr. Speaker, it may he
m\ hon. fnend i- not a"«ie f j have another reason for charging the

ement which he is ^'^bnt^c has ^ ^ John ^ )iaf| t„ do Wlth
forwarded ip tnl, tw0 the preparation of this affidavit, of Ijaving

,ts butlt1 only prefesses to be an affi deliberately gone to work with the intern 
__ ions Now what tlon °* inducing the public to believe thatfitST™' “atïw .3 52 ; « V *-l wanted to have laid upon the table of I ™ minister of public trorks. There is 

he house,-end what I made numerous in- ^rong and clear evidence of that contam-|iHes aW-inqmriestereu^yjoh- ed » a^ph m «Jm affidav^refened

New Brunswick, who is the aftomey-gen- I wish now to denounce that paragraph as 
ral of that province, and who read that aosolutely false and concocted for the pur- 
also affidavit before that public meeting; pose of reducing the people to believe that 
who read that affidavit and read it, I be- 1 had been guilty of a corrupt act as mm- 
Heve with the intention of influencing the isfer of the crown. This is what the para- 
peopie who were present at that meeting, graph states:
red had it circulated broadcast through- “He (Mr. Pugsley) said. Mr. Mayes you 
jut Canada in the mornjKg papers follow- see it will be nice to have some one who' 
:ng that meeting, so as to make the people could do something for you while in Ot-. 
jf this country believe and intending io tawa. there was always something to be 
make them wrongfully believe - done. ’

Mr. Daniel—Mr. Speaker-----
Some hon. members—Order; sit down.
Mr. Pugslev—That I, as a minister of 

(he crowr., that. I as minister of public
Forks of Canada-----

Mr. Daniel—Mr. Speaker. I rise to a 
point of order.

Dr. Daniel then gave a different version 
pf what had occurred at the St. John 
jneeting and • the speaker declared it was 
go point of order.

Mr. Pugsley—Now, Mr. Speaker, I want 
io call your attention to an extraordinary 
ieature of this declaration and which 1 
[hink will cause you uf~regard with con- 
liderable astonishment the remark which 
jae been made that there was no inten­
tion of leading the people to believe that 
[ bad received thie money while minister 
pf public works in the year 1907. I find 
that* this affidavit, which it has been said, 
bas been corrected, contains now the year 
1905, the figure five being inserted in ink 
red, 1 presume, it is written over the fig­
ure seven which was in typewriting. In 
he original affidavit it says that “on the 
5th of October, 1907. I—that is Mr. Mayes 
“received a telephonic message from Dr.
'ugsley asking me to call and see him 
-xt day, which 1 did,"—and, sir, after 
is affidavit being resworn to this altcr- 
inn from the vear 1907 to 1605 is in- 
alled “W. H." P.” October 19. 1908- So, 
er|, Mr. Speaker, we have this admit- 
lly false affidavit sworn to by Mr, 
lyes on October 12, 1908. an affidavit 
iicb 1 was seeking for, which my soli- 
'nr had demanded not only front Mr.

■»v the premier of the province, who 
read that -false affidavit at that meet- 

, as I was informed. AVe asked them 
■ the original affida\*it. We find it kept 
dcealed. no attempt made to correct it 
d not unitl October 24, 1908. is it cor­
ded by Mayes and reetvom to by him. 
uwx then, there is another important 
alter to which I would like to call your 
tention, and to which I would like to 
11 to the attention of the hon. member 
r St. John because he professes to have 
eat pain fhat he is compelled to bring 
tis matter before parliament. Let me 
■k him, if he was at that meeting and 
e knew that the date of 1907 was wrong 
'd that it should be 1905 what he thought 
xt morning when he saw- in the Daily 
andard and in other St. John papers 
e statement that I had received this 
oney in 1907 when 1 was minister of puh- 

works. What did he think of the edi- 
,rials which charged that as a minister 

the crown 1 had prostituted my office 
id received these moneys from a con 
actor under my department Î 
Mr. Daniel—The minister of public 
orks' has asked me what I thought when 
saw in all the press that mentioned it 

iat the date was 1907. What I thought 
as that the reporters who were present 
, the meeting failed lamentably in doing 
icir duty.
Mr. Pugeley—Then, Mr. Speaker, lei me 
k my honorable friend as the candidate 

the Conservative party in the city of 
t. John, as the candidate in whose in- 
•rest this affidavit was read, as the can- 
date on whose behalf the Conservative sume they were, 
irtv had taken to its bosom this self- makes the statement that he requested 
■nfesged boodler. according to his own \(McAvity to put in 820.000 or $30,000. 
atement, Gershon S. Mayes, and upon [ assumed that they were partners, but 
hose friendship and support they were w(,at their actual relations were I had 
lying, what he did to let the public no knowledge, not having been informed 
now, to let the evening papers know that by either of them, and that was a mat- 
le affidavit was wrong and that so far ter with which I had nothing to do.
■om my receiving this money as minister Mr. Pugsley said that it was true that 

ptolic works I had «imply received a Mr. Mayes had written to him on Aug. 
•e fFm Gershon S. Mayes who was my 22, 1908. complaining there had been with- 
;ient some two years before 1 became a holding of payments. Two days after re- 
f. P. What does he think of the fact reiving• this letter Dr. Pugsley replied
st from the night that the affidavit was ) criticising Mayes for the way he was try-
d, an affidavit whieli put me in a most jng to force the government to buy bis 

rtunate position in the minds of thou- dredge, denying that there bad been an 
s of people in this country, because unproper withholding of payments, and 

t affidavit was calculated to shock the' stating .that the differences between Mayes 
copie of Canada, .because it was a start- and McAvity were matters of supreme ra­
ng statement that a minister of the difference tn him. The ground of com- 
rown, the minister ot public works, had plaint which Maves formerly made, said 
aken moneys from a contractor who had Dr. Pugsley. and one of the things which
ail dealings with his department and I suppose induced him to go from step to
dth whom it was his solemn duty to deal step, first asking me to buy his dredge,
mply from the standpoint of the public then asking me to recognize claims which 
itercst, no effort was made to make a |,e was making against the department, 

tion. What does my hon. friend an(l when he found he could not succeed 
link of the failure of duty upon the part j,, that, making threats of what he Would 

Mr. Hazen and upon the part of himself do in the way of exposure, and finally 
itn regard to this matter? What does making this affidavit in the hope of injur- 
y hon. triend think of the fact that mg me and the Liberal party, 
om the night that this affidavit was sub i,et me say that' from beginning to end 
filed to the meeting up to the day of J]r. Mayes was constantly claiming favors 
le election, neither my hon. friend nor from the department. After 1 became 
r. Hazen ever expressed the slightest minister lie sought to have his contract, 
gret for the great wrong which had been whiffa he said he was willing to have car­

me? My hon. friend has made the ried out at fifty rents, raised to ninety 
atement that Mr. Mayes immediately cents, claiming that it was fairly worth 
urected this error. When did he do it? that; he wanted to have an allowance 
Mr. Boyce—On Oct. 13, 1908. made for boulders of $19.60 instead of
Mr. Pugsley—I will tell my hon. friend $8.60. And you will see in the records 
hen be did it. lie did it upon the even- brought down—letters and telegrams from 
ig of Oct. 13. and how did he do it? He him—and 1 have in my possession letters 
rote a letter and that is the only way anil telegrams from Mr. McAvity asking 

which he did it. lie did not do it by me to grant certain favors. And if you 
rter to the public press and my hon. look over the correspondence from begin- 
end did not do it by letter to the public ning to end, read it line by line, you will

not, find anything to show- that I treated 
Ur. Boyce—Why did the hon. gentle- Mr. McAvity or Mr. Mayes as if they had 
,n nfd do fi ? the slightest claim upon my friendship or
Ur. Pugsley—In the evening papers oi upon my consideration, but in all cases I 
uber 13 there appeared my denial ot diseliarged my public duty and held Air. 

There appeared my statement that Mayes to the contract.-.-absolute perform- 
3 ttek place not in 1907 but in 1905. In mue of the contract which lie had with 
Pc papers, sir, I referred, not in mild the public works department. Purely that 
^aage. to what had taken place. I re- 4s of some importance when this house is 
red. ni language which under other cir- considering whether of not. there- should 

instances might Irave been considered be an investigation.
-h to this matter, i denounced the Let me say to Dr. Daniel that if pe 

v|,n bail made the affidavit as an in- find any of the correspondence brought 
s liar and 1 denounced the men who down—which no doubt he has perused witb 

.yailed themselves of his services in the utmost care any affidavit of Mr. 
tonu terms as i was able to summon. Mayes of any wrmls upon whirl, fes can

I

Mr. Pugsley—He certainly has not made 
any charges against me, but he has inti­
mated in language pretty clear and plain 
that Sir Wilfrid Laurier ought to accept 
my resignation as a minister of the crown. 
And yet my hon. friend says that he has 
made no insinuations against the minis­
ter. Might I ask my hon. friend when 
he comes to think over it, whether there 
is not an insinuation contained in that 
suggestion of his that the prime minister 
should ask me to resign? Let me ask that 
if a member of parliament desires to have 
a minister’s conduct investigated, if he 
thinks the minister has been guilty of any 
wrongdoing, then it is not only the proper 
and manly course, but the parliamentary 
course, the course which appeals to the 
good judgment of all decent men, that he 
should have the courage to prefer his 
charge before the house and undertake the 
responsibility of producing ground for hie 
charges. That is a fair course to take 
towards a minister.

Now, Mr. Speaker. I want to call atten­
tion to some further false statements in 
the affidavit or declaration. It makes the 
statement that he was informed that he 
was the only tenderer upon both occasions, 
and my hon. friend in fathering that affi­
davit is making himseff responsible

Mr. Daniel—I wish to correct the hon. 
minister. I am not the father of that affi­
davit.

Mr. Pugsley—Well. I am sure the hon. 
gentleman is not the stepfather.

Mr. Northrup—Perhaps he is the dry 
nurse.

were
were called for early in the summer, a pro­
vision was inserted that the tenderer must 
have a dredge registered in Canada and 
when they were called for in September 
that specification was omitted. In all 
other respects the tenders were the same. 
No tenders could be got for the work 
with that provision in, as the tender of 
Haney & Miller had shown, but in order 
to meet competition when that condition 
was done away with. Haney & Miller, who 
arc very experienced contractors, tendered 
at the price of $1.00 a yard ancl the tender 
of Mr. Mrfyes was fifty-five cents a yard.
I ask what was the duty of the minister 
of public works. He invited new tenders 
by public advertisements in the various 
newspapers which would come to the no­
tice of contractors. Two tenders were put 
in, one from an experienced firm at $1.00 
for ordinary material, and the other from 
Mayes at fifty-five cents for the same class 
of material. AVhat was the duty of the 
minister? Was it not to accept the low­
est tender? My friend will say that hav­
ing invited new tenders it was the duty 
of the minister of public works to go to 
Mr. Mayes and say: ‘AVhy, you tendered 
before at forty-nine cents, although 
in response to a public advertisement, al­
though you are the lowest tenderer, al­
though you are forty-five cents per cubic 
yard below the next tenderer, a firm of 
experienced contractors, yet I will not*, 
give you this contract on your tender, you 
must come down to the lowest price.” Was 
it the duty of the mÿiater of public works 
to do that ? I do not think so. Bear in 
mind that Mr. Mayes in this extraordin­
ary affair prepared, and, 
dinary circumstances, on th 
general election, when there would be a 
desire to put forth everything which 
be put forward an affidavit in ord 
injure the Liberal party.

Nowhere does he venture to insinuate 
that Mr. Hyman was informed of Mr. 
Mayes’ readiness to tender at fifty-five 
cents per cubic yard. Nor does he ven­
ture to insinuate that he ever intimated 
to Mr. Hyman that he would accept less 
than fifty-five cents per cubic yard. Au 
he says is that he went to Mr. Hyniàn and 
asked if he could have this latter quan­
tity, because he said he was going to bu$ 
a dredge in the United States which cost 
a large sum of money, and he wanted to 
be sure of a large contract, which was nofi 
unreasonable. AVhat did Mr. Hyman say* 
according to Mr. Mayes’ own statement)? 
Mr. Hyman immediately said: You witi 
get such a quantity, provided you are th* 
lowest tenderer. That is all. He happeif 
ed to be the lowest tenderer, and he gefc 
the contract at his price of fifty-five cent* 
per cubic yard. Surely it is important, 
when the house comes to consider whether 
or not this resolution shall be passed and 
this committee of enquiry given, whether 
or not in this whole transaction, from the 
beginning to the end, there is anything 
reflecting upon the conduct of the 
minister of public works, either the pre­
vious minister or myself since I have had 
charge of the department.

I say that so far as Mr. Hyman is con­
cerned there is not a particle of evidence, 
and there is not even a suggestion that 
he swerved one iota from the duty which 
he was sworn to perform. AVhat does my 

j , , honored friend ask? He - asked that with-
“"Mr. Tug«lerv—If it had not been that out a particle of evidence without a charge,
we had the information from the depart- I?thout eVen an ln6,muatl0n 6°,/ar %8 la­
ment before this house, would anybody Hyman is concerned a committee of this 
suppose for a moment but that Mr. Mayes h°“6e *houkD be «olemnly appointed m 
was the only tenderer? Would anybody order to enquire as to whether or not Mr.
suppose for a moment but that he intend- HyI?an h£ du& as mlmSter, pub‘,c 
ed to convey the impreasion that he was works- tSlr<vllr- Hyman is not here to 
the only tenderer and had got fais con- answer for himaelf but I would be eorp-
tract at his own price, and that without “ °"e member°f th? house tobe a ,PaTty 
any further tendera being received, Mr- to the appointing of a committee to in- 
Hyman, the then minister of public works, vestigate the conduct of a former min- 
had awarded him this contract-without «ter of the crown who is not now a mem­
having anv other tenders between which ber of parliament, without some member 
and his a comparison could be made? Sure at lea«t having ventured to make some 
lv the position which my lion, friend has ™8fstion against his conduct 
taken in reading this affidavit is very dif- Mr- Ifnnox-What about the present 
ferent from the actual position. He puts minister. , . . ...
it forward in this affidavit as if on each Mr. Pugsley-My honored friend wil 
occasion there had been no other tender- about the present minister bye and
era and this arrangement had been made ‘A ' . I am speaaing now wi :' 8ard to 
between him and the minister of public the ;ate mrairter, because wnen this house
works. Surely the position is very differ- 13 aake? t0 appoint a commit.ee to investi-
ent when vou find early in tSie summer Kate the awarding ot this dredging cou- 
o£ 1905 that there were tenders called tract ,s ** to investigate any charge
fill-, and the specifications contained the against me, but to investigate the conduct
condition that the dredge tenderer should oi' a gentleman who formerly occupied the 
own a dredge registered at the time in Potion which I have now the honor to 
Canada, and when vou find that there it is to investigate the cont.uc. of Mr. 
were two tenders received, that the ten- Hyman when he was minister or public 
dor of Mr. Mayes for ordinary material workfl- 1 <*an appeal to these gentle- 
was 40 cents per cubic yard, and the next ™en who knew -li. - y man, n o knew 
tender, which was that of M. J. Haney how well he performed h,s duties as mm- 
and Roger Miller. Toronto, who were pro- «ter. to say whether or not some charge, 
pared to comply with the conditions and or some statement, or some e\i ence, or 
which named the price $1.25 per, cubic «orne fact, must not be presented to this 
vurd. There vou have experienced con- house before a committee should be ap- 
tractors, the firm of Hanev i Miller, of pointed to inquire into hia conduct 
•loronto. tendering to do this work at the «ter of public works in connection with 
price of $1.25 per yard for ordinary ma- the awarding of this contract, 
terial. Now, at that time if the minister There is. a8r \ have said, no preten:se up- 
of public works had chosen to waive the °n the part of Mr. Mayes that he had ao> 
condition with regard to dredges and given improper communication with Jr. H>man 
the contract to Mr. Mayes, there being there is no pretence upon Mr. Maves part 
that great difference between them, I sup- that Mr. McAvity had any improper conv 
pose possibly he couldVhave done so, but munication with Mr. Hyman; and with 
it would not have been a fair discharge of the evidence, as I have said, all the ope 
hie duty as minister of public works, be- way, the evidence that tenders were ih- 
cause in asking for tenders he had at- vited in the ordinary public way oy pub- 
tached the condition, the result of which he advertisement, that the tenders were 
had only led Io two tenders of parties who received in the ordinary way, and that the 
were prepared to comply with ihe condi- contract was awarded to the lowest ten* 
tiens, arid that was for a price consider- dercr, it does seem to me that, so far al 
ably higher than thr minister of public Mr. Hyman and his conduct in connection 
work* thought the work was fairly Worth, with the awarding of this contract, are 

Now then, did he do the right, thing concerned, there is nothing to 'lead in any 
in railing again for tenders? 1 submit that way to the suspicion that he did not act 
he did. lie found that the only firm which in an entirely proper manner and entirely 

prepared to tender for this work and in the public* interest . Does my honorable 
which had u dredge registered in Canada friend suggest that Mr. McAvity and Mr. 
and at a price which lie thought in the Mayes were informed of what was the 
public interest he' ought not to pay; or tender of Haney & Miller?

AATiat is implied by that? It is implied 
that I was then a minister at Ottawa, and 
that being at Ottawa, I would be able to 
confer services on Mr. Mayes, and zthey 
weave the whole thing together and put 
it into 1907, and it is difficult for me, it 
is impossible to believe that it was not 
done deliberately #ith that intent. Is it 
not strange that if it was a'mere mistake 
the date should have been put forward 
two years? Is it not strange that the 
date should have been put forward from a 
period when, as solicitor for Mr. Mayes, it 
would have been perfectly right for me to 
receive money frojn him, to a time when, 
as member of parliament and minister of 
the crown, it would have been criminal lor 
me to receive money from him, when to 
have done so would have made me guilty 
of grave public wrong? Is it not strange 
that such a mistake should have occurred 
and be attributed to an error of a type­
writer in the one case and to a typo­
graphical error in the other? And I here 
denounce the statement as absolutely 
false and declare that I tiever made any 
such statement to Mr. Mayes.

Le^ me further say that in former years 
I had been solicitor and counsel for Mr. 
Mayes in important legal proceedings and 
that he was indebted to me in a very 
considerable sum of money, 
that I asked him for some money on ac­
count of these professional services and 
that I accepted hie note, which was per­
fectly right and proper. AVhat was there 
in 1905. when I was not a member of this 
house and when I was solicitor for Mr. 
Mayes, and had been for years acting for 
him in my professional capacity as suqh, 
to prevent me taking his note for $^000 
in payment of such services ?

In the affidavit there. is another state- 
and unfounded, and 

that is the statement that upon one occas­
ion I declined to pay him any money un­
less he settled with Mr. McAvity.- I de­
nounce that statement as absolutely with­
out foundation. In the summer of 1908 I 
received from Mr. McAvity a telegram 
stating that he was interested in the con­
tract with Mr. Mayes, that there was 
money due him. and asking if I could not 
retain these moheye until a settlement 
could be come to between them. Of the 
relation between Mr. McAvity and Mr. 
Mayes I knew nothing. AVhether they 
were partners or not I knew not. I had 
not the slightest intimation as to what 

the relations between them or what 
agreement they had together, but on re­
ceipt of that telegram I understood that 
they were in some way interested to­
gether. T then communicated with Mr. 
Mayes and called his attention to the fact 
that Mr. McAvity had said he was inter­
ested in the contract and had asked me 
to delay payment until they could arrange 

That is not an unusual thing

v

er—
Ur-Some honorable members—Here! 

der!
Dr. Pugaley—Because, Sir, it was to Mr- 

Gershon S. Mayes this money was paid. 
The- crown had no contract with Mr. 
George McAvity. The crown paid no 
moneys to Mr. George McAvity, and the 
crown would have no case and no claim 
of any kind or description against Mr. 
George McAvity. Now,' my honorable 
friend (Daniel) is solicitous for this in­
quiry in order to see whether the crown 
has a claim. Let me tell my honorable 
friend that if it is true, as lie says, that 
Mr. Mayes and Mr. McAvity had no 
knowledge of what was the next tender; 
if it is true, as will appear from all the 
evidence and all the facts we have before 
us, that there -was no collusion of any 
kind between Mr. McAvity and Mr. 
Mrfyes and the minister, and that there 
was no irregularity in the letting of the 
contract, let me say that the crown could 
have no action against Mr. Gershon S. 
Mayes. The only ground upon which an 
action could be founded was that, there 

collusion. Suppose two people are 
about tendering for work with any de­
partment, and one of them says to his 
partner; “Now, I control, this matter and 
I am willing for myself to do this work 
at a certain figure;” and the other part­
ner says: “No, we can get more for that. 
I do not think there is anybody else in 
the country who will do it for the low 
figure at which you think you are tender­
ing and we are perfectly safe at tendering 
at the larger figure,” and a tender is put 
in and it is dealt with in a proper manner 
and upon the advice of the officers of the 
department, and the contract is awarded, 
and the crown discovers afterwards that 
one of the partners who might have con­
trolled it would have been quite willing 
to put in a tender for a smaller amount, 
could the crown turn around and bring an 
action against the firm to recover back 
the money which it might have saved? 
Now, in the absence of collusion that is 
exactly the case here. My honorable 
friend (Daniel) says that Mr. George Mc­
Avity became interested with Mr. Mayes 
in this contract'and if it had not been for 
Mr. George McAvity Mr. Mayes would 
have tendered for a lesser figure. But Mr. 
Mayes did not tender for a lesser figure, 
and he did not tell the minister that be

1
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Mayes had actually left, and which the 
department had to remove at considerable
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now

li
Mr. Pugsley—That may be—at all events 

my hon. friend does assume a certàin re­
sponsibility, in fâct a large measure of re­
sponsibility for any affidavit which he sub­
mits to this house. Now, no member of 
parliament should allow people lightly to 
make affidavits, take them up and read 
them to this house where they reflect upon 
the character of either private citizens dr 
members of parliament. Therefore, when 
a member of this house does read "to par­
liament an affidavit and asks parliament 
to take certain action upon it, it ought to 
be a guarantee that he has made some in­
quiries to satisfy himself as to the truth 
of the statements which are therfe made. 
Now, what has my hon. friend done? He 
has read to this house, in the first place, 
an affidavit which it is admitted, at the 
time it was read to the public meeting, 
contained a false statement of a most ma­
terial character, which continued to con­
tain that false statement down to the 24th 
of March of the present year, an affidavit 
which neither Mr. Hazen nor anybody else 
could klter except Mr. Mayes himself. by 
taking it back and going before the notary 
before whom it was sworn and correcting 
and res wearing to it. He lias read here 
an affidavit which states that Mr. Mayes 
was the only tenderer on both occasions. 
Yet my hon. friend knew from the state­
ment which was brought down to this 
house upon both occasions there were two 
tenderers and that Mayes was the lowest. 
Now what does my hon. friend think of 
that ? Does he think that is honorable and 
fair?

Mr. Daniel—I will tell the hon. gentle­
man what I think of it. If he will recol­
lect what was stated in that affidavit with 
regard to that matter, Mr. Mayes says 
that he was informed months afterwards.

Some hon. members—Oh, oh.
Mr. Daniel—He does not state that he 

was the only tenderer. He says that he 
heard months afterwards that he was the

It is true

was
under extraor-'
e evening of a

could
er to I

ment equàlly false
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willing to do the work for a lesser
sum.

Mr. Daniel—Hè did tender and he could 
not get the contract.

Dr. Pugsley—My hon. friend need not 
have brought that in, because it has no 
bearing of the point. He tendered some 
months before.

Mr. Daniel—Exactly for the same work?
Dr. Pugsley—That was under another 

call for tenders, and at that time he had 
not a dredge and the contract could not 
be awarded to him, and so far as the min­
ister of public works could know' he might 
have changed his mind a thousand times 
between June and September. He- might 
have ascertained in the interim that the 
work was more difficult than he antici­
pated, and the minister would know noth­
ing about it. The point I make is that 
his tender being put in in the regular way 
in response to a public call for tenders, 
his tender having been accepted by the 
minister in good faith,- I care not how 
much he may have paid Mr. George Mc­
Avity, the crown has no claim against Mr. 
Gershcn S. Mayes for one dollar of the 
money which was paid under that con­
tract. And my hon. friend might as well 
face it first as last, that the only ground 
upon which any claim could be made by 
the crown against either Mr. McAvity 
Mr. Mayes is that there was collusion be 
tween them and the department, that 
there was fraud upon the part of the Lite, 
minister of public works, that they con 
6 pi red to enable In get the contract In 
default of tar .public and against the pub 
He interest. That is the only ground uu- 

whish any claim could be made by tlie 
against either Mr. McAvity or Mr- 

Mayes is that there was collusion between 
them and the department, that there was 
fraud upon the part of the late minister 
of public works, that he conspired with 
these people to enable them to get the 
contract in default of the public and 
againBt the public interest. That is the 
only ground upon which a claim could 
be made and if my hon. friend (Daniel) 
wants to see whether this money can be* 
recovered let him have the courage to say 
that the Hon. Charles S. Hyman while a 
member of this house and while minister 
of public works was guilty of this fraudu­
lent act and that, he was a party to this 

having been taken from th^ public

matters.
for the department to do. It is not un­
usual for the department to receive infor­
mation of a dispute between the partners 
and to be asked to delay settlement on

.

that account.
Mr. Foster—AArere they partners?
Mr. Pugsley—I do not know, but I aa- 

Mr. Mayes himself

could not get his contracts canc 
could not get me to engage to give him a 
larger amount than he was in justice and 
by law entitled to, what did he do? He 
then went to the leader of the Conserva­
tive party in New Brunswick and handed 
him these affidavits for the purpose of 
having them read at the great Conserva­
tive meeting in the city of St. John on 
the 12th day of October.

That meeting was attended by great 
Conservative statesmen from other parts 
of Canada, among whom was Sir James 
Whitney, the premier of the province of 
Ontario. 1 am told, sir, and I believe it 
ie just possible that the reason why Dr. 
Daniel succeeded in saving his bacon in 
the election in St. John was that he had 
at first- repudiated all knowledge of thi:; 
affidavit after it was read. Mr. Mayes 
handed them this affidavit and they made 
the most of it before the elections. It did

own
sider a cnarge against one of its members 
from such a contaminated source?

Mayes said that he had made a compact 
with Mr. McAvity and had paid the min­
ister of public works $2,000. This the min* 
ister of public works denied. Dr. Pugsley 
had admitted that he had been paid fees 
for legal services by Mayes before becom­
ing a member of parliament. Mayes said 
that the payment was for political ser­
vices. However, common sense had to be 
applied. Mayes would not 
unless he got a return. There 
pear ,to have been a return. Mayes got 
his contract in open competition and had 
been compelled to carry that contract out.

It was on record that Mayes had tried 
to hold up the department for the pur­
chase of his dredge and the minister of 
public works had declined to have any­
thing to do with the improper proposal.

The motion was one of no confidence 
and we arc not. disposed to vote no confi­
dence in the minister of public works ot 
whom we arc proud. Therefore I will ask 
the house to refuse the motion of the 
member for St. John.

The vote was. 69 to 100, a government 
majority of forty.

Hon. Dr. Pugsley refrained from voting
Hon. Mr. Fielding followed with an elo­

quent condemnation of the motion and & 
brilliant defence of the position taken by 
the minister of public works.

Oil
crown

pay $2,000 
did not ap-

nof, do them any good then, and I do not 
think the fathering of it. by Dr. Daniel 
and the reading of it in this house is go­
ing to do him and his jiarty very much 
good now or in the future.

AAJiile | was in the provincial arena 1 
endeavored to discharge my duty to the 
public and when I received the very high 
honor of being called by the prime minis­
ter to take a seat in his cabinet I made 
up my mind that I would be even more 
zealous than I ever was before in the pub­
lic weal. ,

I have endeavored at all times, Sir, to 
perform my duties not only as a member 
of parliament but a$ minister in what 1 
conceived to be in the best interests of 
the country, and, let me say that if there 
is any gentleman on the opposite side of 
the house, my honorable friend from St.
John (Daniel) included, who feels ' that 
there is any ground for an attack against 
me in reference to this contract, or any 
other, then I say the fair and manly eari 
course is to make a charge ns to the admin- 
wtration of my department, and let me 
sav al*o to those Vomtervativv-wwtqiti'pers lOO.

ae nun-

money 
treasury.

Mr. DapieJ—AA'ill the minister say 
whether in his opinion that wae a legal 
connection between Mayes and McAvity.

Mr. Pugsley—I would not be at ^11 ad­
verse to giving an opinion to my hon. 
friend on that, question if it. were at all 
before the house but that is a question 
between Mr. McAvity and Mr. Mayes.

Mr. Daniel—And the minister, too.
Mr. Pugsley—I would say this to my 

hon. friend and 1 won't charge him any­
thing for this opinion.

Mr. Daniel- That is a very unusual

The total number of passengers earned 
by the railroads in India in 1907 was 305.- 
$90,000 against 271,00*000 in 1906. The 

lingti therefrom amounted to $50,150, 
000, against $45,618.330 in 1908. The.third- 
class passenger traffic amounted to $4,101,-

can
thing.

Mr- Pugsley- I 
Mayes' has" i= tied Mr. McAvity and why?

understand that Mr.
1
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